
 

 

 
Priorities and Resources Review Panel 2019/20 

 
Members 

Councillors Barnby, Bent, Bye, Darling (S), Lewis (C), Long, Morey and Sykes 

 
(Contact Kate Spencer on t: 01803 207014 or e: scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk) 

 

 
Monday, 19 November 2018 at 9.30 am  

to be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay,  
TQ1 3DR 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
1.   Public Representations  
 To hear from any member of the public or organisation who wishes to 

make representations about the Elected Mayor’s proposed budget in 
respect of Children’s Services, Adult Services and Housing and Public 
Health. 
 
(15 minutes maximum) 
 

2.   Adult Substance Misuse Services (Pages 3 - 
15)  To consider the Elected Mayor’s proposal in relation to Adult 

Substance Misuse service. 
 
Invitees: Elected Mayor, Executive Lead for Health and Wellbeing, 

Director of Public Health 
 

2(a)    Public Health - Proposed Revenue Budget 
 

(Pages 16 - 
17) 

2(b)    Public Health - Proposals for service change, income generation and 
efficiencies 
 

(Pages 18 - 
20) 

3.   Children's Services (Pages 21 - 
23)  To consider the Elected Mayor’s proposals for the Children’s Services 

revenue budget for 2019/2020. 
 
Invitees: Elected Mayor, Executive Lead for Children’s Services, 

Director of Children’s Services 
 

mailto:scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk


 

3(a)    Children's Services - Proposed Revenue Budget 
 

(Pages 24 - 
35) 

3(b)    Children's Services - Proposals for service change, income generation 
and efficiencies 
 

(Page 36) 

 



Draft - Supporting Information and Impact Assessment 
 

Proposal: Adult Substance Misuse Services 

Executive Lead: Councillor Jackie Stockman 

Director / Assistant Director: Caroline Dimond 

 

Version: 1 Date: October 2018 Author: Jude Pinder  

 
 

Section 1:  Background Information 
 

 
1. 
 

 
What is the proposal / issue? 
 
The proposal is to reduce the budget for adult substance misuse services by 
£100,000 in 2019/20, this would be further to the budget reductions of £318,000 
that were achieved between 2016 and 2019.  
 
The 2018/19 budget for all substance misuse services (inclusive of NHS, private 
and pharmacy-based provisions) is c£2.47m.  This proposal would result in a 4% 
reduction in expenditure in 2019/20 (budget total of £2.37m). 
 
There is a risk that the Police and Crime Commissioner will cease her contribution 
to the local authority in relation to criminal justice treatment pathways from 
2019/20. This income is currently c£60,000, and would be in addition to the 
reduction proposed. 
 
 

The savings are expected to be found solely by the NHS provider – Torbay and 

South Devon NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
It is anticipated that the savings in 2019/2020 could be found through the 
following: 
 

 Further streamlining of the management structure  

 Reduced ‘patient-facing’ time, which has the potential to impact on 

practitioner roles. 
 Considering the ability to deliver a further reduction in medical sessions for 

the prescribing of opiate substitute therapy 
 Consideration whether certain populations can be offered safe and 

effective services which do not require regular or frequent contact with the 
treatment service e.g. implement a low-intensity treatment model. 

 

 
2.   

 
What is the current situation? 
 
Drug use occurs in Torbay, as it does everywhere. Public Health England states 
the impact of drug use nationally is: 
 

 £26,000 of crime is committed by each heroin or crack user not in 
treatment 

 The annual cost of looking after children of a drug using parent is £42.5m 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 29% of all serious case reviews have drug use as a risk factor 
 Every £1 spent on drug treatment saves £2.50 to society. 

 
Alcohol use also places significant burden on local public services. Public Health 
England state the impact of alcohol use nationally as: 
 

 27% of all serious case reviews mention alcohol misuse 
 Deaths from liver disease have increased 15% between 2011 and 2013 
 £7 billion pounds is lost due to reduced productivity. 

 
The NHS substance misuse service in Torbay is currently commissioned from 
Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust (with a significant element further 
sub-commissioned from Devon Partnership NHS Trust). Substance misuse 

services are not specifically mandated, however there is a specific condition of 
the public health grant that states that the local authority must: 
 

‘…have regard to the need to improve the take up of, and outcomes 

from, its drug and alcohol misuse treatment services.’  
 
Source: Public health ring-fenced grant determination 2016/17: no 31/2719, page 6. 
 
In Torbay, the current NHS substance misuse services provide:  

 Community alcohol service – an open access service where people can be 

referred/self-refer for treatment for their alcohol consumption. Treatment 
includes group work, one to one work and prescribing where clinically 
appropriate, and signposting into recovery and peer support groups. In 
addition there is support for carers and families.  

 Coordination of alcohol screening provision – coordination, training and 
deployment of volunteers to deliver alcohol (and smoking) screening in 
high impact areas on the hospital site. 

 Drug service – an open access service where people can come into the 

community team (or required to attend criminal justice treatment) for 
treatment for their drug use, including use of prescription drugs, illegal 

drugs and novel psychoactive substances (aka ‘legal highs’, ‘SPICE’).  

Treatment includes group work (including high intensity), one to one work 
and prescribing where clinically appropriate and signposting into recovery 
and peer support groups. In addition there is support for carers and 
families.  

 Specialist detoxification from alcohol or drug use.   
 Testing for blood borne viruses e.g. HIV and vaccination against Hepatitis 

B.  
 Community based rehabilitation for addiction.  

 
 
The current pharmacy-based substance misuse services provide:  

 Needle Exchange – this service directly reduces harm to injecting drug 

users by providing sterile identifiable injecting equipment and sharps bins. 
The service aims to reduce the incidence and transmission of blood borne 
viruses such as hepatitis in the population. 

 Supervised Consumption of controlled medications – this service is key in 

supporting drug users to comply with their prescribing regime, ensuring 

Page 4



medication is taken as required and reducing the misdirection of 
medications into the community. 

 

The current private providers deliver: 

 Provision of safe needle and syringe equipment and the safe removal of 
associated waste from pharmacies. 

 

The current Community services provide: 

 Training, volunteering and employment pathways for those who are 
socially disadvantaged, in particular substance misuse clients. 

 Coordination and administration of grants to community groups to 
initiate small community-driven initiatives specifically to improve the 
health and well-being of local populations. 

 

The current commissioning and contract arrangements with the NHS provider 
have opened up the possibility of safely reconfiguring the delivery of the service.  
The re-commissioning of the three previously contracted providers into one 
contract means that there is current potential to streamline medical provision, 
management, staffing and service delivery; although the 2019/20 reductions will 
certainly have an impact on patient facing time and therefore will impact on staff 
involved with direct care. 
  
The impacts of this proposal could be greater for families due to proposed 
significant reductions in other areas of public health work such as public health 
nursing which are proposed to take effect over the following couple of years.  
 
The overall reduction of funding to voluntary and community sector organisations 
may mean that this reduction is more acutely felt as there is less resource within 

the overall ‘system’ to support those in recovery from addiction. 

 

 
3. 

 
What options have been considered? 
 
The deletion of entire elements of this contract has been considered.  However, 
for substance misuse services to be effective, each needs to work as an integral 

part of the wider ‘system’.    

 
The re-contracting arrangements already in place have paved the way for 
commissioners to further reduce the financial value of this service by bringing 
three Substance Misuse Services for adults under one Local Authority contract. 
There are no further permissible options under this strand of work. 
 
This service is expected to form part of the emerging vulnerable and complex 
adult redevelopment work; scoping currently being undertaken within the local 
authority and involving key strategic partners (e.g. Health, Police and Probation). 
 
Recommissioning of services through a procurement exercise is a viable option 
and could be completed within the next two years.  
 
As it is likely that this will form part of the multiple and complex needs 
redevelopment, regard will need to be given to officer capacity to manage any 
procurement required within this strand of work. 
 

Page 5



 
4. 

 
How does this proposal support the ambitions, principles and delivery of the 
Corporate Plan 2015-19? 
 

This proposal supports the following principles of the Corporate Plan: 
 

 Use reducing resources to best effect. 
 Reduce demand through prevention and innovation. 

 

 
5. 

 
Who will be affected by this proposal and who do you need to consult with? 
 
There is the potential for the following to be potentially affected by this proposal:   
 

 Service users  
 Staff in the service  
 Other commissioners, for example Office of Police and Crime 

Commissioner (OPCC) and South Devon and Torbay Clinical 
Commissioning Group (SDTCCG)  

 Primary care colleagues in GP Practices  
 Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 
 The general public  
 Pharmacies 

 

6. How will you propose to consult? 
 
This proposal is the second year of a proposal that was consulted on for the 
2018/19 budget.  
 
In addition to this, we consulted with the current services and Public Health 
England though the systematic review of substance misuse services in Torbay 
undertaken in 2017/18. 

 

 
Section 2:  Expected Implications and Impact Assessment 
 

 
7. 
 

 
What are the expected financial and legal implications? 
 

 Will create financial savings for contract year 2019/20. 
 May create redundancy liabilities, if affected post holders cannot be 

redeployed into existing Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust or 
Devon Partnership NHS Trust provisions. 
 

 
8.   

 
What are the expected risks? 
 
As the services reduce the intensity of support and/or the enhanced provisions for 
specific client groups (e.g. criminal justice clients) there will be a potential impact 
on other services which these service users often use.  These include Primary 
Care GP Practices, Accident and Emergency Department, Police, emergency 
accommodation provision, and the community and voluntary sector.  There may 
be increased use of these services, should people wishing to access Substance 

Page 6



Misuse Services not be able to get an appointment.  However, at present, there 
are no waiting lists to access Substance Misuse Services. 
 
The following potential risks have been identified at this stage:  
 

 Service models will describe a less-intense provision of support – for 

example, one-to-one support being replaced by group support, or less 
frequent appointments/reduced specialist clinics and sub-services.  

 Services are likely to report reduced numbers of people successfully 

completing treatment – meaning people get ‘stuck’ in the system, with 

sustained periods of dependence on services provided in Torbay, such as 

housing, Safeguarding (Children’s and Adult’s), Children’s Services, opiate 

substitute therapy prescribing etc.   
 Reduced successful recovery rates for those in treatment, which could lead 

to poorer outcomes for individuals in terms of employability, independence 
and economic activity. Increased periods of prescribing of opiate substitute 
therapy (such as methadone) for people, as they take longer to journey 
through recovery, to the point of successful drug-free discharge.  

 Increased risk of prolonged criminality for people using drugs, relating to 
both acquisitive crime and vulnerability offences like domestic abuse.  

 Decreased responsiveness between Substance Misuse Services and other 
services, such as criminal justice agencies and Job Centre Plus.  

 Potentially a reduced ability of the service to maintain existing levels of 
service user monitoring of treatment compliance and capacity to address 
concerns.  This in turn could lead to an increased risk of a serious event 
occurring e.g. children or vulnerable adult safeguarding or death in 
treatment. 

 Existing health inequalities across Torbay could widen and could lead to 
early mortality in this vulnerable and complex service user group.  

 
While the risks are balanced by the fact that the numbers of people using this 
specialist service represent a small proportion of people in Torbay, the potential 
risks and impacts described above could create greater demand and cost 
pressures for the wider Local Authority services and partner agencies. 
 
There is also a risk that the Police and Crime Commissioner will cease its 
contribution to the local authority in relation to criminal justice treatment pathways 
from 2019/20. This income is currently c£60,000 and would be in addition to the 
reduction proposed. 

 
9. 

 
Public Services Value (Social Value) Act 2012  
 
The (re)procurement of services is not relevant for this report. 
 

 
10. 

 
What evidence / data / research have you gathered in relation to this 
proposal? 
 
The Public Health Team used a prioritisation matrix as an assurance that services 
were commissioned based on evidence, impact and effective efficiency.  
 

Page 7



There are a range of guidance, recommendations and supporting documentation 
that underpins drug and alcohol commissioning and provision. These are 
summarised on the following websites: 
 
Public Health England: http://www.nta.nhs.uk/who-healthcare.aspx  
 
National Institute of Health and Clinical Excellence (drugs): 
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/lifestyle-and-wellbeing/drug-misuse  
 
National Institute of Health and Clinical Excellence (alcohol): 
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/lifestyle-and-wellbeing/alcohol  
 
 

 
11. 

 
What are key findings from the consultation you have carried out? 
 
Feedback from the budget questionnaire completed as part of 2018/2019 budget 
proposals (which included the 2019/20 drug and alcohol budget reduction) is provided 
below:  
 

To reduce the Substance Misuse Service contract. 
 
This proposal is to reduce the budget by £62,000 in 2018/19 and £100,000 in 
2019/20.  
 
These services provide treatment for people who use drugs and alcohol 
problematically and provide pharmacy based services e.g. needle exchange and 
supervised consumption of controlled medication. The proposed budget for next year 
would be £2,475,000. 

 

 
Do you support this 

proposal? 
Do you feel this proposal will 

impact on you? 

  Number Percent Number Percent 

Yes 200 52.2% 92 24.0% 

No 167 43.6% 242 63.2% 

No answer 16 4.2% 49 12.8% 

Total 383 100.0% 383 100.0% 

 
Overall there was an overall majority who supported the proposal. Almost two-thirds of 
the respondents indicated that the proposal would not impact them. 
 
The Local Authority also received one written representation on behalf of the 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) in Torbay. The CSP raised concerns that budget 
reductions would have detrimental effects on the ability of Torbay to manage a 

population at risk of ‘falling through the gaps’ in services.  

 
The CSP stated that the: 

‘….availability of effective drug, alcohol and mental health services 
that are accessible and reach out to individuals to address their 
behaviours are an essential component to achieving any impact on 
the issues outlined’.   

 

Page 8

http://www.nta.nhs.uk/who-healthcare.aspx
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/lifestyle-and-wellbeing/drug-misuse
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/lifestyle-and-wellbeing/alcohol


The response also drew attention to particular issues that the CSP feared could be 
exacerbated by reducing the substance misuse service budget, including: 

 Substance misuse being the most prevalent factor amongst those who engage 
in street-based anti-social behaviour (more often than not coupled with mental 
ill health, unstable accommodation and a history of current and/or historical 

abuse) – Torbay is witnessing increasing levels of crime, including shoplifting, 

street begging and street-based anti-social behaviour specifically in Torquay 
Town Centre. 

 Those close to dependency being absorbed into County Lines Activity - a ‘new' 

phenomenon where reduced substance misuse services could create ‘a fertile 

environment for organised crime groups to exploit’.  

 County Lines activity linked to the potential for more significant offence types 
occurring in the localities where County Lines are prevalent (violent robbery 
etc). 

 

 
12. 
 

 
Amendments to Proposal / Mitigating Actions 
 
No amendments made to the proposal.  

 
  

Page 9



Equality Impacts  
 

13 Identify the potential positive and negative impacts on specific groups 

 

 Positive Impact Negative Impact & Mitigating 
Actions 

Neutral Impact 

Older or younger people 
 

Those engaged with the service 
who have contact with children 
and young people and present a 
risk to these will be more actively 
engaged with to ensure young 
people are safeguarded.  

Services will not specifically target 
older people and these could be 
affected, but the level of impact is 
not expected to be 
disproportionate compared to all 
other ages.  
 
Of the drug using population who 
are engaged with treatment 
services, young adults are 
underrepresented with only 7% 
aged under-25. With the services 
being demand-led and not 
specifically targeting age groups, 
young adults could be affected.  
 
Older adults form the majority of 
people in drug treatment with 72% 
of the treatment population being 
35 or over. It is possible that the 
reducing service capacity will 
impact this group predominantly 
as a consequence of being the 
most prevalent age group.  
 
Pathways currently in place for the 
transition of young people into 
adult services could be impacted 
due to the capacity of the 
workforce but this should be 
mitigated by the assertive 
engagement of young people 

The service is not applicable for 
under 18s and therefore these are 
not directly affected by this 
proposal.  

P
age 10



transitioning to adult services 
remaining in place.  
 
It is possible that there is some 
unmet treatment need in people 
aged 60 and over. 55.8% of 
alcohol attributable admissions to 
hospital were in people of that age 
group (2012 South West Public 
Health Observatory Report, 
Alcohol Attributable Admissions in 
Torbay) whereas only 14% of 
those in alcohol treatment were 
aged 60 and over. 

People with caring 
Responsibilities 
 

A service for carers of substance 
misusers to support them whilst 
the individual is in treatment will 
remain. Carers will continue to be 
involved in the design and 
development of the local services.  

With an increasing number of 
older people with a history of long-
term Opiate use, carers may be 
affected due to a shrinking 
workforce; the capacity to identify 
and refer those with caring 
responsibility to the carers service 
may be impacted. It will remain a 
specific strand of the contract 
which will be monitored for its 
effectiveness, so as to mitigate 
against this.  

 

People with a disability 
 

The service will continue to make 
themselves accessible to 
customers with disabilities 
including wheelchairs etc. and 
other impairments such as sign 
language.  
 
The service provision is in part 
delivered by a mental health 
service provider due to the high 
rates of mental health problems 

 It is not anticipated that those with 
a disability will be adversely 
impacted. 

P
age 11



among the substance misuse 
population.  

Women or men 
 

The services will continue to 
provide access to treatment 
services on a basis of need not 
gender.  

Men are predominant in treatment 
services locally, as they are 
throughout the country; however 
the proportion of women in 
treatment in Torbay (c36%) is 
slightly higher than the national 
average (c30%). 
 
Nationally there has been a slight 
increase in the proportion of 
females accessing the service.  
 
Services will continue to make 
themselves open and accessible 
to all genders although there 
might be less opportunities for 
seeing their keyworker and/or 
prescriber at convenient times as 
service capacity shrinks. 

 

People who are black or 
from a minority ethnic 
background (BME) (Please 
note Gypsies / Roma are 
within this community) 

 

Substance misuse services will 
continue to work with people who 
are black or from a minority ethnic 
background (BME). 
There are currently no known 
access issues to treatment in 
Torbay. 

The treatment population reflects 

the ethnic mix of Torbay’s wider 

population. However, language 
and cultural barriers and lack of 
knowledge of an unknown system 
can inhibit people who are black 
and from a minority ethnic 
background (BME) from accessing 
health services. The opportunity 
for substance misuse services to 
actively seek and target this 
population will be limited due to 
the reduction of resources. 
 
In mitigation substance misuse 
services should continue to 

 

P
age 12



actively promote their services in 
all forms that people from a 
different culture or with a different 
language can interact with.  

Religion or belief (including 
lack of belief) 
 

There is no information currently 
available to suggest that there are 
any impacts in relation to religion 
or belief.  

Services will continue to make 
themselves open and accessible 
although there might be less 
opportunities for seeing their 
keyworker and/or prescriber at 
convenient times as service 
capacity shrinks. 

This should not affect the service 
delivered as religion and belief are 
not criteria used to determine who 
receives this service. 

People who are lesbian, 
gay or bisexual 
 

 Services will continue to make 
themselves open and accessible 
although there might be less 
opportunities for seeing their 
keyworker and/or prescriber at 
convenient times as service 
capacity shrinks. 

This should not affect the service 
delivered as sexual orientation is 
not a criteria used to determine 
who receives this service. 

People who are 
transgendered 
 

 Services will continue to make 
themselves open and accessible 
although there might be less 
opportunities for seeing their 
keyworker and/or prescriber at 
convenient times as service 
capacity shrinks. 

This should not affect the service 
delivered as sexual orientation is 
not a criteria used to determine 
who receives this service. 

People who are in a 
marriage or civil partnership 
 

The service will continue to 
support positive relationships.  

Services will continue to make 
themselves open and accessible 
although there might be less 
opportunities for seeing their 
keyworker and/or prescriber at 
convenient times as service 
capacity shrinks. 

This should not affect the service 
delivered as relationships and 
marriage are not used to 
determine who receives this 
service. 

Women who are pregnant / 
on maternity leave 

 

Women who are pregnant or have 
small children will continue to be a 
priority group to access treatment. 
The service provision for pregnant 
women is a priority as pregnancy 

Services will continue to make 
themselves open and accessible, 
with established pathways 
between treatment and maternity 
services remaining in place. 

 

P
age 13



is often a catalyst for change and 
will continue to be a priority group 
due to the harm substance misuse 
during pregnancy can have on an 
unborn child.  

 
There might be less opportunities 
for seeing their keyworker and/or 
prescriber at convenient times as 
service capacity shrinks. 

Socio-economic impacts 
(Including impact on child 
poverty issues and 
deprivation) 

 

There will continue to be a 
commissioned service focussed 
on getting substance misusers 
into training and volunteering 
opportunities through the 
community development/voluntary 
sector. 

Within the substance misuse 
treatment population 
unemployment is high. 
 
Access to paid employment for 
more than 10 days in the past 28 
remains a challenge for the opiate 
using population locally. 

The majority of service users will 
be from more deprived areas. 

Public Health impacts (How 
will your proposal impact on 
the general health of the 
population of Torbay) 

 

 Substance Misuse services have 
a client group that is made up of 
disproportionately disadvantaged 
people already.  Cutting capacity 
within this service could challenge 

the treatment system’s ability to 

improve life expectancy in this 
vulnerable group. 
 
This may be mitigated by 
contractually obliging Substance 
Misuse services to employ a 
proportionate universalism 
approach; providing a service to 
all who need it, but prioritising 
resources to those who need it 
most.   

 

14 Cumulative Impacts – 

Council wide 
(proposed changes 
elsewhere which might 
worsen the impacts 
identified above) 

 Any future reductions to Sexual Health services may mean increased numbers of people with blood 
borne viruses, which may impact on Substance Misuse services.  

 Any future reductions to Public Health Nursing may mean increased responsibility for awareness of 

child safeguarding in Substance Misuse services and referrals in to Children’s and Adults 

Safeguarding generally. 

P
age 14



15 Cumulative Impacts – 

Other public services 
(proposed changes 
elsewhere which might 
worsen the impacts 
identified above) 

 The new models of care in the health system locally, plus the Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(http://www.devonstp.org.uk/ ) putting prevention first, is expecting more from local public health 
services when capacity in the system is decreasing. 

 

 
 

P
age 15

http://www.devonstp.org.uk/


Public Health

2019/20 Budget Summary (*ATL)

Service ID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure 

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees **

Public Health - Ring-Fenced Grant

Community Development903 15 0 15

Management & Administration - Public Health900 1,754 -842 91215.4

Non Prescribed Functions - Public Health901 4,108 -3 4,1050

Prescribed Functions - Public Health902 4,045 0 4,0450

9,922 -845 9,07715.4Service Total

Total 9,922 -845 9,077

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services **= 2018/19 indicative FTEs

15.4

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 2a



Public Health - Ring-Fenced Grant

Supplies & 
Services

Contribut'n 
to Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Contrib'ns
 from 
other 

Govern't 
Grant 

Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

903 Community Development 0 0 0 0 15 15 0 0 0 0 0 15

900 Management & 
Administration - Public 

88715.4 1 866 0 0 1,754 -251 0 -591 0 -842 912

901 Non Prescribed Functions - 
Public Health

00 0 4,108 0 0 4,108 0 0 0 -3 -3 4,105

902 Prescribed Functions - 
Public Health

00 0 3,989 56 0 4,045 0 0 0 0 0 4,045

887 1 8,963 56 15 9,922 -251 0 -591 -3 -845 9,077Service Total 15.4

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 2a
A

ppendix 1



Proposals for service change, income generation and efficiencies 
Public Health 
 
Responsible Officer: Caroline Dimond 
Executive Lead: Councillor Stockman 
 

 2018/2019 
Budget 

£000 

2019/2020 
Proposed 
Reduction 

£000 

Anticipated Outcomes Associated Risks 

Proposals to meet reduction in ring-fenced Public Health grant 

Adult Substance 
Misuse – see 
proposal below as 
well 

2,559 10 The savings are expected to be found solely by the 
NHS provider (Torbay and South Devon NHS 
Foundation Trust) through the following changes: 
 

 Further streamlining of the management 
structure 

 Reduced ‘patient-facing’ time, which has 
the potential to impact on practitioner roles 

 Considering the ability to deliver a further 
reduction in medical sessions for the 
prescribing of opiate substitute therapy 

 Consideration whether certain populations 
can be offered safe and effective services 
which do not require regular or frequent 
contact with the treatment service e.g. 
implement a low-intensity treatment 
model. 

 

There will be a potential impact on other services 
which these service users often use such as GP 
Practices, Accident and Emergency Departments, 
Police, emergency accommodation provision, and 
the community and voluntary sector.   
 
The following potential risks have been identified at 
this stage:  
 

 One-to-one support may be replaced by 
group support and there may be less 
frequent appointments/reduced specialist 
clinics and sub-services.  

 Reduced numbers of people may 
successfully complete treatment with 
service users possibly having sustained 
periods of dependence on services such as 
housing, Safeguarding (Children’s and 
Adult’s), Children’s Services, opiate 
substitute therapy prescribing etc.   

 Reduced successful recovery rates for those 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 2b



 2018/2019 
Budget 

£000 

2019/2020 
Proposed 
Reduction 

£000 

Anticipated Outcomes Associated Risks 

in treatment, which could lead to poorer 
outcomes for individuals in terms of 
employability, independence and economic 
activity 

 Increased risk of prolonged criminality for 
people using drugs 

 Decreased responsiveness between 
Substance Misuse Services and other 
services 

 Potentially a reduced ability of the service 
to maintain existing levels of service user 
monitoring of treatment compliance and 
capacity to address concerns 

 Existing health inequalities across Torbay 
could widen and could lead to early 
mortality in this vulnerable and complex 
service user group.  

 
While the risks are balanced by the fact that the 
numbers of people using this specialist service 
represent a small proportion of people in Torbay, 
the potential risks and impacts described above 
could create greater demand and cost pressures for 
the wider Local Authority services and partner 
agencies. 
 
Draft Equality Impact Assessment prepared 
 
 

P
age 19



 2018/2019 
Budget 

£000 

2019/2020 
Proposed 
Reduction 

£000 

Anticipated Outcomes Associated Risks 

Proposals to meet overall Council targets 

Adult Substance 
Misuse – see 
proposal above as 
well 

2,559 90 As above As above 

 

P
age 20



Children’s Services         Executive Lead:  Councillor Stocks 

            Responsible Officer: Alison Botham 

2018-19 
Restated 
Revenue 
Budget 

2018-19 
Correction to 
inflation 
estimate 

Changes in 
Funding 

Pressures, 
known changes 
and 
Transformation 

Budget 
Proposals 

Inflation Public Health 
activities 
carried out 
elsewhere in 
the Council 

Contribution 
from Tor Bay 
Harbour 
Authority to 
the Council 

Elected 
Mayor’s 
2019/2020Pro
posed 
Revenue 
Budget  

31,937 0 -200 3,044 -700 740 0 0 34,821 

 

Children's Safeguarding Service - Disabilities / Quality Assurance 

This area of the budget covers services to safeguard children and young people with disabilities and work with families with complex needs.  It covers the 
work associated with placing, supporting and monitoring the children with disabilities who need to be in the care of the local authority as well as the 
provision of short breaks; holiday playschemes; and other groups for children with complex to profound learning and/or physical disabilities.   

This section also includes the Safeguarding Unit, the Torbay Safeguarding Children’s Board and PARIS team as well as organisational development for all 
Children’s Services staff. 

 

Children's Safeguarding Service – Placement Costs and Allowances 

This section of the budget only includes costs relating to the care of children in need or in care. It includes health income to support packages of care and 
contributions from Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) for joint funded placements with an educational element. 

 

  

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 3



Children's Safeguarding Service – Specialist Services/Intensive Youth 

Children’s Safeguarding team provides fostering and adoption services in Torbay such as recruitment, assessment, supervision and support.  It also covers 
the Looked After Children/ Permanence team in which the Social Workers take the statutory responsibility, in conjunction with colleagues within the 
Adoption Team, for completing the necessary reports and procedures around the process of placing a child for adoption, from the making of a ‘Placement 
Order’.  And also the work of Long-Term Care:  

In which a large number of the children allocated to this team are placed either in Torbay foster placements, or within ‘out of area’ fostering and residential 
provision. 

This section also covers the work of the Integrated Youth Support Service that provides an integrated service to children and young people from the age of 
10 until 25. The IYSS service will bring together a range of areas such as youth offending, care leavers, attendance improvement and provide targeted 
interventions to prevent or reduce the numbers of young people entering or remaining within the care system. 

 

Children's Safeguarding Service – Senior Management/Initiatives 

This service includes the costs of Business Support including staff travel, subsidence, mobile phone and office expenses across Children’s Services. It also 
includes the costs of the Senior Management Team (excluding the Director of Children’s Services).  

 

Children's Safeguarding Service – Children in Need/Single Assessment/Child Protection/MASH 

This section of the budget covers the Children in Need Service which came into effect on 1 June 2014 and is responsible for  the following areas of social 
work: Initial Assessments, Core Assessments, Child Protection investigations (s47) from Initial Assessment where required, Children Looked After, Duty 
system/rota and Section 7 reports. It also covers The Family Solutions Service is one part of the journey towards the Integrated Services Delivery Model. 
This has enabled the opportunity to bring together the Family Intervention Project with the Locality Family Support Teams to create a new service of 
Community Care Workers currently delivering targeted interventions to children, young people and their families at high level 2 of the child’s journey. 

It is also responsible for child protection service where the teams hold caseloads of children who have been identified as being in need of support and/or 
protection which is delivered via a Child in Need plan or a Child Protection Plan. Those children most at risk of harm may be ‘looked after’ and their 
circumstances considered within the Court arena. 

It also covers work by The Arc (Assessment Resource Centre), Intensive Family Support Service (IFSS) and Family Group Conferencing. 

 

P
age 22



Commissioning Unit Inc Youth and External Contracts 

This includes Commissioning Unit (including Youth Carers Service), Youth Services an external contracts with Careers South West, Children’s Society and 
Citizens Advice. This also includes the Troubled Families Grant. 

 

Schools Services 

This service includes services funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of approximately £32m and Council funding. The main services predominately 
by DSG are: - School Formula Allocations, Alternative Provision / Vulnerable Children, Independent Special School Fees, PVI and Early Years funding. 

Services predominately funded by Council funding are:- Special Educational Needs, Home to School Transport / Escorts, other school support services 
including Educational Psychology and Advisory Teachers, Governing Body Support and Private Finance Initiative. 

 

P
age 23



Children's Services

2019/20 Budget Summary (*ATL)

Service ID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure 

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees **

Children's Safeguarding Service - Disabilities / Quality Assurance

Disabilities - Day Care Services709 307 -7 3001.57

Disabilities - Direct Payments715 414 -139 2750

Disabilities - Domiciliary Care713 18 0 180

Disabilities - Overnight Short Breaks714 338 -22 3160

Disabilities - Social Work Team712 350 0 3508.2

Disabilities- Occupational Therapy710 141 0 1410

PARIS Team760 134 0 1344

Safeguarding Children Board708 189 -84 1052.5

Safeguarding Unit / Training707 785 0 78510.6

2,676 -252 2,42426.87Service Total

Children's Safeguarding Service - Placement Costs & Allowances

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 3a



Service ID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure 

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees **

16+ Independent Provision762 636 0 6360

Adoption Allowances743 326 0 3260

Child Arrangement Orders740 281 0 2810

Connected Persons Fostering736 306 0 3060

In House Fostering734 6,140 -65 6,0750

Independent Sector Fostering737 3,191 0 3,1910

Lodgings / Personal Allowances735 332 0 3320

Parent & Child Placements738 816 0 8160

Residential Care739 4,960 -375 4,5850

Section 17 - Assistance to Families741 271 0 2710

Special Guardianship Allowances742 835 0 8350

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children763 110 -78 32

18,204 -518 17,6860Service Total

Children's Safeguarding Service - Specialist Services / Intensive Youth

Adoption Service719 896 -40 8569.83

P
age 25



Service ID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure 

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees **

Fostering-Recruitment, Assessment,Supervision & Support718 646 0 64612.98

Intensive Youth Support Service722 381 0 3817.62

Looked after Children Team716 867 0 86719.36

Placement with Families & Matching761 133 0 1333.81

Youth Offending720 588 -328 26013.81

3,511 -368 3,14367.41Service Total

Children's Safeguarding Service -Senior Management / Initiatives

Business Support725 1,469 -22 1,44763.03

Senior Management Team731 900 0 90010.6

2,369 -22 2,34773.63Service Total

Children's Safeguarding Service-Safeguarding & Supporting Families/Single Assessment/MASH

Assessment Resource Centre728 402 0 40210.42

Early Help Service717 460 -261 19913.35

P
age 26



Service ID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure 

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees **

Family Group Conferencing727 124 0 1240

Intensive Family Support / CAMHS729 637 0 63713.6

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)726 376 0 3768.2

Other Safeguarding Activities/Legal costs732 1,091 -4 1,0870

Safeguarding & Supporting Families730 1,486 0 1,48633.49

Single Assessment Team759 694 0 69415

5,270 -265 5,00594.06Service Total

Commissioning, Including Youth & External Contracts

Careers South West Contract703 325 0 3250

Children's Society Contract704 153 0 1530

Troubled Families Grant756 563 -563 03.81

Young Person's Substance Misuse705 120 -68 520

Youth Trust701 339 0 3397.77

1,500 -631 86911.58Service Total

P
age 27



Service ID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure 

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees **

Schools Services

Alternative Provision / Vulnerable Children744 1,123 0 1,12317.19

Early Years / Children's Centres Contract748 1,232 -48 1,1848.38

Home to School Transport / Escorts751 1,994 -54 1,9403.2

Independent Special School Fees746 2,720 -150 2,5700

Other School Support Services752 2,254 -843 1,41114.24

Private Finance Initiative753 2,825 -2,201 6240

PVI Nursery Funding - 2, 3 & 4 year olds747 5,212 0 5,2120

School Funding / DSG and Other Grants749 32,241 -43,851 -11,6100

SEND Reforms706 191 -78 1135.4

Special Educational Needs745 1,328 -548 7807.93

51,120 -47,773 3,34756.34Service Total

Total 84,650 -49,829 34,821

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services. **= 2018/19 Indicative FTEs

329.89

P
age 28



Children's Safeguarding Service - Disabilities / Quality Assurance

Supplies & 
Services

Contribut'n 
to Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 

Income

Income from 
Health

Income 
Police / 

Probation

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

709 Disabilities - Day Care 
Services

881.57 0 108 0 111 307 0 0 -7 0 -7 300

715 Disabilities - Direct Payments 00 0 0 0 414 414 -52 0 -87 0 -139 275

713 Disabilities - Domiciliary Care 00 0 18 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 18

714 Disabilities - Overnight 
Short Breaks

00 0 0 0 338 338 0 0 -22 0 -22 316

712 Disabilities - Social Work 
Team

3468.2 0 4 0 0 350 0 0 0 0 0 350

710 Disabilities- Occupational 
Therapy

240 0 10 0 107 141 0 0 0 0 0 141

760 PARIS Team 1344 0 0 0 0 134 0 0 0 0 0 134

708 Safeguarding Children Board 1302.5 0 59 0 0 189 0 0 -84 0 -84 105

707 Safeguarding Unit / Training 59010.6 0 195 0 0 785 0 0 0 0 0 785

1,312 0 394 0 970 2,676 -52 0 -200 0 -252 2,424Service Total 26.87

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 3a
A

ppendix 1



Children's Safeguarding Service - Placement Costs & Allowances

Supplies & 
Services

Payments 
to Carers

Payment
 to 

Provider

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 

Income

Income from 
Health

Contribs. 
From DSG

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

762 16+ Independent Provision 00 0 0 0 636 636 0 0 0 0 0 636

743 Adoption Allowances 00 0 0 326 0 326 0 0 0 0 0 326

740 Child Arrangement Orders 00 0 0 281 0 281 0 0 0 0 0 281

736 Connected Persons 
Fostering

00 0 0 306 0 306 0 0 0 0 0 306

734 In House Fostering 00 0 410 5,598 132 6,140 -31 0 -34 0 -65 6,075

737 Independent Sector 
Fostering

00 0 0 0 3,191 3,191 0 0 0 0 0 3,191

735 Lodgings / Personal 
Allowances

00 0 0 0 332 332 0 0 0 0 0 332

738 Parent & Child Placements 00 0 7 0 809 816 0 0 0 0 0 816

739 Residential Care 00 0 46 0 4,914 4,960 0 0 -375 0 -375 4,585

741 Section 17 - Assistance to 
Families

00 0 240 0 31 271 0 0 0 0 0 271

742 Special Guardianship 
Allowances

00 0 0 835 0 835 0 0 0 0 0 835

763 Unaccompanied Asylum 
Seeking Children

0 0 0 0 110 110 0 -78 0 0 -78 32

0 0 703 7,346 10,155 18,204 -31 -78 -409 0 -518 17,686Service Total 0

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 3a
A

ppendix 2



Children's Safeguarding Service - Specialist Services / Intensive Youth

Supplies & 
Services

Contribut'n 
to Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Contribs. 
from 

other LA's

Govern't 
Grant 

Income

Income from 
Health

Other 
Income

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

719 Adoption Service 4279.83 0 73 0 396 896 -40 0 0 0 -40 856

718 Fostering-Recruitment, 
Assessment,Supervision & 

58212.98 0 64 0 0 646 0 0 0 0 0 646

722 Intensive Youth Support 
Service

2847.62 0 14 0 83 381 0 0 0 0 0 381

716 Looked after Children Team 82219.36 0 45 0 0 867 0 0 0 0 0 867

761 Placement with Families & 
Matching

1313.81 0 2 0 0 133 0 0 0 0 0 133

720 Youth Offending 56113.81 0 27 0 0 588 0 -170 -16 -142 -328 260

2,807 0 225 0 479 3,511 -40 -170 -16 -142 -368 3,143Service Total 67.41

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 3a
A

ppendix 3



Children's Safeguarding Service -Senior Management / Initiatives

Supplies & 
Services

Contribut'n 
to Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 

Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Buyback 
from 

Schools

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

725 Business Support 1,31763.03 2 150 0 0 1,469 0 0 0 -22 -22 1,447

731 Senior Management Team 78110.6 0 119 0 0 900 0 0 0 0 0 900

2,098 2 269 0 0 2,369 0 0 0 -22 -22 2,347Service Total 73.63

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 3a
A

ppendix 4



Children's Safeguarding Service-Safeguarding & Supporting Families/Single Assessment/MASH

Supplies & 
Services

Contribut'n 
to Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Cont 
from 

Reserve

Contribut'n 
from Grants

Parents 
Penalty 
Notices

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

728 Assessment Resource Centre 37410.42 23 5 0 0 402 0 0 0 0 0 402

717 Early Help Service 45013.35 0 10 0 0 460 -26 0 -235 0 -261 199

727 Family Group Conferencing 1170 0 7 0 0 124 0 0 0 0 0 124

729 Intensive Family Support / 
CAMHS

49613.6 0 8 0 133 637 0 0 0 0 0 637

726 Multi Agency Safeguarding 
Hub (MASH)

3758.2 0 1 0 0 376 0 0 0 0 0 376

732 Other Safeguarding 
Activities/Legal costs

1960 0 185 50 660 1,091 -4 0 0 0 -4 1,087

730 Safeguarding & Supporting 
Families

1,44133.49 0 45 0 0 1,486 0 0 0 0 0 1,486

759 Single Assessment Team 68815 0 6 0 0 694 0 0 0 0 0 694

4,137 23 267 50 793 5,270 -30 0 -235 0 -265 5,005Service Total 94.06

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 3a
A

ppendix 5



Commissioning, Including Youth & External Contracts

Supplies & 
Services

Contribut'n 
to Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 

Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Income 
from 

Health

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

703 Careers South West Contract 00 0 325 0 0 325 0 0 0 0 0 325

704 Children's Society Contract 00 0 153 0 0 153 0 0 0 0 0 153

756 Troubled Families Grant 1643.81 0 32 0 367 563 0 -449 -114 0 -563 0

705 Young Person's Substance 
Misuse

00 0 120 0 0 120 0 0 0 -68 -68 52

701 Youth Trust 2517.77 0 88 0 0 339 0 0 0 0 0 339

415 0 718 0 367 1,500 0 -449 -114 -68 -631 869Service Total 11.58

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 3a
A

ppendix 6



Schools Services

Supplies & 
Services

Contribut'n 
to Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE) 

ID      Service Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 

Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Buy-back 
from 

Schools

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

744 Alternative Provision / 
Vulnerable Children

83117.19 15 237 0 40 1,123 0 0 0 0 0 1,123

748 Early Years / Children's 
Centres Contract

3528.38 0 880 0 0 1,232 -20 0 0 -28 -48 1,184

751 Home to School Transport / 
Escorts

1033.2 0 1,507 0 384 1,994 -25 -29 0 0 -54 1,940

746 Independent Special School 
Fees

00 0 0 0 2,720 2,720 -150 0 0 0 -150 2,570

752 Other School Support 
Services

68914.24 0 298 0 1,267 2,254 -48 -531 -40 -224 -843 1,411

753 Private Finance Initiative 00 0 1,938 847 40 2,825 -680 -503 -1,018 0 -2,201 624

747 PVI Nursery Funding - 2, 3 & 
4 year olds

00 0 168 0 5,044 5,212 0 0 0 0 0 5,212

749 School Funding / DSG and 
Other Grants

10 0 25 1,872 30,343 32,241 0 -40,154 -3,697 0 -43,851 -11,610

706 SEND Reforms 1805.4 0 11 0 0 191 0 -78 0 0 -78 113

745 Special Educational Needs 3567.93 0 92 0 880 1,328 -548 0 0 0 -548 780

2,512 15 5,156 2,719 40,718 51,120 -1,471 -41,295 -4,755 -252 -47,773 3,347Service Total 56.34

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 3a
A

ppendix 7



Proposals for service change, income generation and efficiencies 
Children’s Services 
 
Responsible Officer: Alison Botham 
Executive Lead: Councillor Stocks 
 

 2018/2019 
Budget 

£000 

2019/2020 
Proposed 
Reduction 

£000 

Anticipated Outcomes Associated Risks 

Business Support 1,545 150 A service re-design is currently underway with a 
new Business Support Service offer going live on 1 
January 2019.  There are currently 12.5 FTE 
vacancies within Business Support and these posts 
will be deleted as part of the re-design. 

There is a risk that there is an impact on the 
delivery of social work.  This risk will be managed 
through the re-design process. 

Procurement and 
Contract 
Management 

17,100 
(Third party 

spend) 

550 The identification of net cost savings through 
reviewing procurement and contract management 
processes and redesigning those areas of Children’s 
Services which have the least impact on children 
and young people’s outcomes.  

There is a risk that no changes can be made to 
procurement and contract management processes 
and that the saving cannot be achieved. 

Total  700   

 

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 3b


	Agenda
	2 Adult Substance Misuse Services
	2a Public Health - Proposed Revenue Budget
	Public Health - Ring Fenced Grant

	2b Public Health - Proposals for service change, income generation and efficiencies
	3 Children's Services
	3a Children's Services - Proposed Revenue Budget
	Children's Safeguarding Service - Disabilities/Quality Assurance
	Children's Safeguarding Service - Placement Costs and Allowances
	Children's Safeguarding Service - Specialist Services/Intensive Youth
	Children's Safeguarding Service - Senior Management/Initiatives
	Children's Safeguarding Service - Safeguarding and Supporting Families/Single Assessment/MASH
	Commissioning (includng Youth and External Contracts)
	Schools Services

	3b Children's Services - Proposals for service change, income generation and efficiencies

